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Structure, governance and management 

The Trustees (who are also directors of the charity for the purposes of the Companies Act) present their annual report, together with the 
financial statements and auditor’s report, of St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust for the period ended 31 August 2019. The annual 

report serves the purposes of both a Trustees’ report, and a directors’ report under company law. 

The Trust now operates 17 primary and secondary schools across the City of York, North Yorkshire and the East Riding of Yorkshire. The 
number of pupils on roll as at 31 August 2019 were 2,582 across the 13 schools which were part of the Trust at that time. 

a. Constitution  

St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust is a company limited by guarantee and an exempt charity, which was incorporated on 
the 24 April 2019, and commenced its operations on 1 June 2019 when the first schools joined the Trust.  
 
The Charitable Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association (February 2019) are the primary governing documents of the 
Trust.   
The Trustees are responsible for the charitable activities of the Trust Ltd and are also the Directors of the Charitable Company for the 
purposes of company law. The Charitable Company is known as St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust (SMCCAT). 
 
Details of the Trustees who served throughout the period, except as noted, are included in the Reference and Administrative details on 
page 3.   
 
The principal activities and objectives of the Trust are specifically restricted in the advancement of the Catholic religion in the Diocese. 
By such means as the Diocesan Bishop make see fit and proper, but without prejudice, to the generality of the forgoing, the 
establishing, maintaining, carrying on, managing and developing of Catholic schools in the UK, conducted in accordance with the 
principals and subject to the regulation and discipline of the Catholic church. 
  

All our schools are ‘Outstanding’ or ‘Good’ as rated by Ofsted but are also recognisably Catholic schools, with an ethos and values 
underpinning their work that reflect that. 

b. Members’ liability 

Each Member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in the event of it being 
wound up while they are a Member or within one year after they cease to be a Member. Such amount, as may be required, will not 
exceed £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before they ceased to be a Member.  

c. Method of recruitment and appointment or election of Trustees 

The Members of St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust are responsible for the appointment of the Trust Board and the Chairs 
of the local governing bodies who in turn are responsible for appointments to their respective boards.   

The Bishop of Middlesbrough appoints foundation Directors since they are the Bishop’s representatives on the Board. Other Directors 
are appointed by the Board following a recruitment process such as advertising or working with agencies such as Ambassadors to secure 
the right skill set. All Trustees/Governors are appointed based upon the contribution they can make to the development and future 
success of the Trust. This is assessed through a short application and in a meeting with one or two directors and the Chief Executive 
Officer. No Trustees/Governors receive remuneration for their services other than reasonable out of pocket expenses.   

d. Policies and procedures adopted for the induction and training of Trustees 

New Trustees are inducted into the working of the Trust, including policies and procedures, at arranged meetings with the Chief Executive 
Officer (CEO) and the Chief Finance and Operating Officer (CFO/COO). The training and induction provided will depend on the individual 
Trustees’ skill set and experience. Where appropriate, induction will include training on educational, charity, legal and financial matters 
(with copies of policies, procedures, minutes, budget plans, management accounts and other appropriate documentation).  

e. Pay policy for key management personnel 

Head teachers and other educational senior leaders are paid by reference to national leadership pay scales.  Salary ranges are currently 
aligned to the three local authority pay scales following the TUPE transfer of staff into the Trust.  New staff will be employed on the Trust 
terms and conditions, which are very similar and are dependent on seniority of position and size of school.  The CEO and CFO/COO are 
on salary ranges agreed by the Trust Board after benchmarking against similar sized MATs.  The Board will conduct an annual review of 
all key personnel salaries. 
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f. Organisational structure 

The organisational structure of the Trust is based on the principles that: 

The Members of the Company define the Object, Purpose and Ethos of the Company. 

The Trustees, who form the Trust Board, have overall responsibility and ultimate decision-making authority for all the work of the 
Company, including the establishing and running of schools and, in particular, each academy as a school. This is largely exercised 
through strategic planning and the setting of policy. It is managed through the business planning, monitoring of budgets, performance 
appraisal, the setting and monitoring of standards and the implementation of quality assurance processes.  

The Trustees have the power to direct change where required to ensure that the Object, Purpose and Ethos of the Company are met. 

The Trustees delegate their responsibilities for the day to day operation of each academy and the whole of the funding granted by the 
Department of Education for the benefit of the academy directly to a Head Teacher and Local Governing Body (LGB) through a Scheme 
of Delegation. 

The Executive Team, consisting of the CEO, the CFO/COO and the School Standards Officers control the Trust/academies at an executive 
level by implementing the policies laid down by the Trustees and reporting back to them regularly. The Head Teachers across the Trust 
are responsible for the authorisation of spending within agreed budgets and the appointment of staff at their academy. Some spending 
control is devolved to members of their Senior Leadership Team with financial limits above which a Senior Manager must countersign.   

Individual academy Senior Leadership Teams (SLT) include the Head Teacher, the Deputy or Assistant Head Teacher and the 
Operations/Business Managers. These managers are responsible for the day-to-day operation of the academy, in particular, organising 
teaching staff, facilities and students. 

To assist the Trustees in their work, the Trust has established the following committees: 

Finance and Audit Committee 

Catholic Standards Committee 

During the period, the Trust consisted of the following academies (please note ** joined the Trust after the 31 August 2019, for         
info only) 

 
Academy Name Date Converted Type 

Our Lady and St Peter Catholic Primary 

School   

01/06/2019 Primary 

St George's Catholic Primary School 
(Scarborough) 

01/06/2019 Primary 

St Augustine’s Catholic School 01/06/2019 Secondary 

St Francis Xavier School - A Joint Catholic 
and Church of England Voluntary Academy 
 

01/06/2019 Secondary 

St Mary’s Catholic Primary School 
(Richmond) 

01/07/2019 Primary 

St Joseph’s Catholic Primary School 01/07/2019 Primary 

St Mary’s Catholic Primary School (Market 
Weighton) 

01/07/2019 Primary  

St Mary & St Joseph Catholic Primary 
School 

01/07/2019 Primary 

St John of Beverley Catholic Primary 
School 

01/07/2019 Primary 

St Mary’s Catholic Primary School (Malton) 01/07/2019 Primary 

St Benedict’s Catholic Primary School 01/08/2019 Primary 

Sacred Heart Catholic Primary School 01/08/2019 Primary 
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St Peter’s Catholic Primary School 01/08/2019 Primary 

** St Aelred's Catholic Primary School 01/09/2019 Primary 

**St George’s Catholic Primary School 
(York) 

01/09/2019 Primary 

**St Wilfrid’s Catholic Primary School 01/09/2019 Primary 

**Our Lady Queen of Martyrs Catholic 
Primary School 

01/09/2019 Primary 
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Strategic Report prepared by the Chief Executive Officer 

Mission and core principles 

Our Mission is to make God known to all through the advancement of the Catholic Faith.  Our Vision is to ‘Bring joy, hope, opportunity 
and purpose for our children in an uncertain world, through exemplary Catholic and Christian education, the love of what we do and 
the courage to make a difference’. Our schools are communities of Faith, Service, Prayer and Worship. Within our schools, while we 
give preference to Catholic children we usually have spaces available for children of other faiths or none and we welcome the 
opportunity this brings to learn and to share experiences.  We have a culture of acceptance where people of diverse identities are 
recognised, welcomed, respected and cherished. We seek to make a difference to all groups of children, especially ensuring the most 
vulnerable in our society are not disadvantaged. Our Schools work in partnership with families and parishes to promote strong, positive 
links. Every school in the Trust is on a journey of continual improvement, aspiring for excellence year-on-year. 
 
We run faith schools, which nurture every child to fulfil their maximum potential academically, personally and through first class 
pastoral support, reflective of our Catholic values. 
 
As a Trust, we are courageous on behalf of our schools, giving them new opportunities and enabling them to excel through strong 
support and by putting the weight of a large organisation behind them for the benefit of our children.  We value each school’s 
individual character as the schools value each child as an individual -irrespective of background or characteristics - and we take 
decisions about centralisation, standardisation and local discretion based on what is best for our children.  Our ambition for our schools 
as well as our willingness to break the mould and stand up for what is right for our schools and our children is encapsulated in our 
motto ‘Fortes pro scholis nostris’ 
 
Strong beginnings 
 
Our schools joined the Trust in four phases over the summer of 2019.  Effectively we formed as a brand new Trust of 17 Catholic 
schools, newly academised.  We are therefore engaged in a significant programme of work to embed new processes and procedures to 
ensure that we realise the benefits of being part of a reasonably large Trust and so optimise the ability of our schools to spend valuable 
resource – whether time or money – where it matters. 
 
We are proud that our School Standards Officers were in place for the start of the first term as an Academy Trust and have begun to 
make an impact already, supporting our schools to improve even from the strong position in which they started.  We are seeing more 
sharing of expertise and more informal support for our staff, personally and professionally, in carrying out the critical work they do. 
 
We are committed to working with our partners to be an outward facing Trust, identifying organisations that we can work with to 
improve the life chances of our children and the professional lives of our staff. 
 
While it is unlikely that we will undergo any Ofsted inspections due to recent academisation and the ‘Good’ or ‘Outstanding’ ratings of 
all of our schools, we are putting resource and energy into continually improving our schools, ensuring a broad and balanced 
curriculum and focusing on areas that need development as well as highlighting a sharing areas of strength. 
 
We are developing a basket of measures to ensure that we are creating new opportunities for our children and that they fulfil their 
academic potential as well as being positively contributing citizens. 
 
Our strategy is based on 8 core pillars that drive our work, enabling us to focus on what is most important to our mission.  They are: 
 

Catholic Life and Faith 
 

Enable each child to develop their God given gifts, explore a world view of the human 
person and society which is shaped by faith and reason; foster friendship with Jesus 
Christ; help children engage in building a better society characterised by justice and a 
relationship between humanity and the environment. 
 

People, Leadership, 
Capability   
 

Provide outstanding governance, executive leadership and school leadership with clear 
succession planning; attracting, developing and retaining the best people to work in 
our schools. 
 

Partnerships  
  
 

Develop and strengthen partnerships that share our vision and values and realise clear 
benefits within our geographical area and local communities.  
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School Improvement 
   
 

Ensure that our schools provide the very best teaching and learning and achieve strong 
outcomes for our children and young people, enabling staff to make a real difference 
to pupils in every school. 
 

Finance   
   

Ensure a financially viable and sustainable trust delivering valuable and cost-effective 
services to schools and enabling schools to maximise their resources to enhance 
quality. 
 

IT Processes, Technology, 
Intelligence  

Develop and embed technology and intelligence in a way that cuts workload, fosters 
efficiencies, removes barriers to education and ultimately drives improvements in 
educational outcomes across the trust. 
 

Sustainability  Ensure that our curriculum, actions and behaviours provide the leadership, knowledge, 
skills, attitudes and values necessary to address sustainable development challenges. 
 

Estates Create a strategic and long-term view of investment and expenditure across the trust’s 
whole estate based on evidence that it addresses an educational need that also allows 
for local autonomy in the way the strategy is delivered. 
 

 
Future growth 
 
While our early focus as a new Trust will be consolidation and excellence in our current schools, we have one further secondary school 
due to join us in the next academic year and we are working with them to prepare for this.  We are open to further expansion once we 
are satisfied that our new team and systems are fully embedded, on the basis of alignment of values and benefit to the children 
involved. 

Trade union facility time  

St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Trust published its trade union facility time below for the period ending 31 August 2019: 

Relevant union officials 

 

Number of employees who were relevant union officials during the 
relevant period 

Full-time equivalent employee number 

 0  0 

Percentage of time spent on facility time 

 

Percentage of time Number of employees 

0%   

1% - 50%  0 

51% - 99%   

100%   

Percentage of pay bill spent on facility time 

 

Provide the total cost of facility time  Zero 

Provide the total pay bill  N/A 

Provide the percentage of the total pay bill spent on facility time, 
calculated as: (total cost of facility time / total pay bill) x 100 

 N/A 

Paid trade union activities 

 

Time spent on paid trade union activities as a percentage of total 
paid facility time hours calculated as:  

(total hours spent on paid trade union activities by relevant union 
officials during the relevant period / total paid facility time hours) 
x 100 

 Nil 
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Public benefit 

The trustees confirm that they have complied with the requirements of Section 17 of the Charities Act 2011 to have due regard to public 
benefit in determining the activities undertaken by the trust, and have complied with the guidance issued by the Charity Commission 
relating to public benefit. The Trust is keen to emphasise the public benefit provided by the trust, which can be seen by the activities, 
and performance outlined within the trustees report. 

Financial review 

The responsibility for the monitoring and support of open academies lies with the Education and Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) which 
handles the funding for all 4-19 education. In November 2019, the ESFA carried out a post-opening audit of the Trust. A report was 
produced and shared with the Trustees. There were no concerns raised based on the stage of the Trust’s formation. 

Most of the Trust’s income is obtained from the ESFA and the Local Education Authority in the form of recurrent grants, the use of which 
is restricted as defined by its Memorandum and Articles of Association. The grants received from the ESFA and Education Authority 
during the period ended 31 August 2019 and the associated expenditure are shown as restricted funds in the Statement of Financial 
Activities. 

The Trust also receives grants for fixed assets from the Department for Education. In accordance with the Charities Statement of 
Recommended Practice, ‘Accounting and Reporting by Charities’ (SORP 2015), such grants are shown in the Statement of Financial 
Activities as restricted income in the fixed asset fund. The restricted fixed asset fund balance is reduced by annual depreciation charges 
over the expected useful life of the assets concerned. 

Incoming resources (including Budget surpluses and deficits inherited from LA funds) due to transfer on conversion from LA but excluding 
restricted fixed asset funds transferred during the period amounted to £3.9 million and were sufficient to cover all outgoings to produce 
an operating in year surplus of £0.508 million. 

The reserves (excluding fixed asset and pension fund) as at 31 August is £0.508m and the funds ratio as a % of total income stood at 
12.9% in the period ended 31 August 2019. Based on a full year’s annualised income, the % of general reserves would be at approximately 
3%. The deficit in LGPS pension funds is recognised on the balance sheet in accordance with the provisions of FRS102. The total deficit in 
the scheme as at 31 August 2019 was £2.935 million. Movements in the pension fund are reported in note 27 of the Financial Statements. 

The balance sheet discloses cash and bank balances of £0.983 million for the period ended 31 August 2019. 

Going concern 

After making appropriate enquiries, the Board of Trustees has a reasonable expectation that the Trust has adequate resources to 
continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future. For this reason, it continues to adopt the going concern basis in preparing 
the financial statements. Further details regarding the adoption of the going concern basis can be found in the Statement of Accounting 
Policies (Note 1.5). 

Reserves and Investment Policy 

The Trustees review the reserve levels of the Trust annually.  This review encompasses the nature of income and expenditure streams, 
the need to match income with commitments and the nature of reserves.  The Trustees have determined that the appropriate level of 
reserves, excluding restricted fixed asset funding, should be equivalent to at least 3% of total income. The reason for this is to provide 
sufficient working capital to cover delays between spending and receipt of grants and to provide a cushion to deal with unexpected 
emergencies such as urgent maintenance 

The Trust’s level of free reserves (total funds less the amount held in fixed assets and general restricted funds), as at 31 August 2019, 
were £0.823 million.  

The Trustee's investment powers are governed by the Memorandum and Articles of Association and allow the charity's funds to be 
invested in a wide range of investment vehicles without restriction. The Trustees have approved the investment of cash into a medium-
term bank deposit account. This will be managed through closely monitored cashflow forecasting and working capital analysis. 

Details of the funds held by the Trust are set out in notes 20 and 21 of the attached financial statements 
 

Principal risks and uncertainties 

The Trustees have assessed the major risks to which the Trust is exposed, in particular to those relating to teaching, provision of facilities 
and other operational areas of the Trust, and its finances. The Trustees have adopted policies and procedures to mitigate these risks for 
the executive team to implement and report to the Finance and Audit committee for any non-compliance. The key risks fall into four 
categories:  
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People 

The Trust success is very much dependent on recruiting, developing and retaining the very best people in every position in its academies 
and central services. One of the specific risks is the failure to recruit the agreed school staffing structure in numbers or capacity, especially 
in core subjects and Directors and or Members to the agreed board structure and the IT team and infrastructure. These risks could have 
a significant impact on teaching quality, governance and risk of failure to comply with ESFA and DfE required standards. The Trust has is 
developing a people strategy to address the identified risks with a varied program of first class regular training and wide range of 
opportunities for greater career development.  

Safeguarding 

The safety of students and staff is of paramount importance to the Trust. The risks of failure to protect and or safeguard the students 
and staff could have a detrimental impact on the reputation of the Trust as well as the negative impact on individuals concerned. 
Therefore, the Trust places the highest importance on the safety and wellbeing of students and staff within its academies and central 
team. The Trust has in place robust safeguarding and child protection policies and procedures to support academies in ensuring that 
students are safe and feel supported and everyone working in the Trust are trained and knows when and how to raise any concerns that 
they may have about safeguarding. Implementation and effectiveness of these policies, which conform to DfE guidance, are monitored 
regularly. The Trust has in each of its academies a Designated Safeguarding Lead (DSL) who ensures consistent best practice in 
safeguarding and child protection. 

Finance and operation 

The education sector faces uncertainty over the level of future funding. Changes in the basis of funding for academies reduces funding 
or creates financial challenges. Consequently, squeeze in academy budgets results in staffing cuts and other compromises to educational 
quality thus leading to loss of quality education. The trust has relatively high cash reserves that could be drawn upon to mitigate the risk 
in the short term. In the long term, the Trust has in place strong financial planning and budget maximisation strategy to ensure that 
educational needs are met. There is also a risk of fall in roll in some areas of SMCCAT catchment area due to the remote nature of some 
of our schools.  

Education 

There is a risk of exam results falling below expectation within a school or more generally or failure to secure good or outstanding from 
Ofsted. This could cause the loss of stakeholder confidence in the quality of education provided. The Trust has in place experience and 
qualified SLT, middle management and support staff driving high standard in all its academies and continuous improvement and new 
systems being embedded in its programme. 

Fundraising 

The Trust does not engage in raising funds directly from the general public and does not use a professional fundraiser or consider 
fundraising activity to be significant. The Trust will continue to monitor its sources of income and should it start to generate significant 
funds from fundraising activities then will inform the fundraising regulator and take all necessary measures to ensure it complies with 
guidance issued. 

Funds Held as Custodian on behalf of others and Agency Arrangements 

The Trust does not act as a custodian trustee on behalf of others.  

Pension reserve 

The presence of a pension surplus or deficit does not constitute an immediate realisable asset or liability and does not mean the 
equivalent amount is already committed or no longer available. 

The presence of a pension surplus or deficit will generally result in a cash flow effect for the Trust in the form of a decrease or increase 
in the employer’s pension contributions over a period of years. The Trust is confident that it can meet the required pension contributions 
from projected future income without a significant impact on its planned level of activity.  

The risk surrounding the Trust’s pension liability has been taken into consideration when preparing the annual budgets and, therefore, 
the Trust’s reserves requirement will continue to be calculated without setting aside a designated reserve to cover the pension liability. 

 

Plans for the future  

The Trust aims to achieve the highest educational outcomes for all its students as well as providing professional development 
opportunities for its staff so that all academies can continue to grow and become self-supporting. 
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The Trust will continue to build upon the educational success and financial stability of its schools by: 

Ensuring all schools are assessed as good or outstanding by taking action on those issues raised by Ofsted during their various 
inspections 

Improving teaching and, therefore, learning and achievement through targeted internal and external training. In addition, through the 
provision of excellent IT facilities and services. 

Continuing to review and evaluate the effectiveness of governance throughout the Trust and implementing a programme of support 
for improvement as appropriate 

Further developing its central procurement strategies by utilising specific external advice and support 

Further refine its Scheme of Delegation so as to reduce exposure to risk and to achieve best value 

Expansion of its Teaching School programme. 

Employee Consultation and disabled employees 

The Trust continuously seek to encourage the involvement of its employees in its management through regular staff meetings in order 
to challenge educational and social disadvantage. Employees are consulted on issues of concern to them through consultative meetings 
and are kept informed of specific policies directly by management. 

The Trust will employ disabled persons when they appear to be suitable for the role and every effort is made to ensure they are given 
full and fair consideration. There are policies in place (Equality and Diversity policy, health and safety policy etc.) so that employees who 
have been injured or disabled during the course of their employment can, where possible, continue with their employment. 

During the employment, the Trust seeks to work with employees, taking into account their personal circumstances, to ensure appropriate 
training, development and advancement opportunities are available to enable them to reach their full potential. 

Disclosure of information to auditors 

Each of the persons who are Trustees at the time when this Trustees’ report is approved has confirmed that: 

As far as that Trustee is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the charitable company’s auditors are unaware 

Trustees have taken all the steps that ought to have been taken as a Trustee in order to be made aware of any relevant audit 
information and to establish that the charitable company’s auditors are aware of that information 

This report, incorporating a strategic report, was approved by order of the Board of Trustees as the company directors, on 12 March 
2020 signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

 
 
Dominic Brendan Paisley  
Chair of Trust Board 
 



 
 
St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust  
Governance Statement for the period ending 31 August 2019 

 

13 
 

Scope of responsibility 

As Trustees, we acknowledge we have overall responsibility for ensuring that St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust has an 
effective and appropriate system of control, financial and otherwise. However, such a system is designed to manage rather than 
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and can provide only reasonable and not absolute assurance against material 
misstatement or loss.  

The Trust Board has delegated the day to day responsibility to the Chief Executive Officer, as Accounting Officer, for ensuring financial 
controls conform with the requirements of both propriety and good financial management and in accordance with the requirements 
and responsibilities assigned to it in the funding agreement between St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust and the Secretary 
of State for Education. They are also responsible for reporting to the Trust Board any material weaknesses or breakdowns in internal 
control.  

Governance 

The information on governance included here supplements that described in the Trustees’ Report and in the Statement of Governors’ 
Responsibilities. The Trust Board has formally met five times during the year. Going forward they will meet at least four times in a full 
year.  

The Finance and Audit Committee would normally meet at least three times per year, however, during the initial setup phase they 
were not formally established. They are a committee of the main Trust Board. Its purpose is to assist the Trust Board in fulfilling its 
oversight responsibilities with regard to the financial management of St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust. It does this 
through the review of financial projections, management accounts and balance sheet reconciliations and to make recommendations 
to the Trust Board. In addition, it reviews the financial statements and accounting policies, receive and review the internal and external 
auditors report and ensuring that recommendations are actioned and risk managed.  

Attendance during the year at meetings of the Trust Board, Finance and Audit Committee was as follows:  

 

Name Trust Board Finance and Audit 
Committee 

Dominic Brendan Paisley  5/5 N/A 

Catherine Mary O’Sullivan  5/5 N/A 

Kevin Duffy  5/5 N/A 

Kiran Jude Fernandes  2/5 N/A 

Giles Edward John Nightingale  3/5 N/A 

Mark Benjamin Yeung  4/5 N/A 

Reverend Simone Louise Bennett  4/5 N/A 

David Harrison 1/4 N/A 

Peter Alfred Cannings 3/4 N/A 

John Derek Sutherland  3/5 N/A 

 

Review of value for money 

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for ensuring that the Trust delivers good value in the use of public 
resources. The Accounting Officer understands that value for money refers to the educational and wider societal outcomes achieved 
in return for the taxpayer resources received. The Accounting Officer considers how St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust use 
of its resources has provided good value for money during each academic year and reports to the Trust Board where value for money 
can be improved, including the use of benchmarking data where available. As a new Trust, the COO has implemented procedures and 
processes to deliver value for money through improved procurement initiatives and centralisation of support functions, where 
appropriate.  
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Financial governance and oversight 

The Trust benefits from the provision of an independent internal audit service provided by Baldwins Audit Services. Baldwins Audit 
Services report directly to the Trust Finance and Audit Committee on all systems and procedures together with other areas identified 
which include GDPR, Health and Safety, Financial controls and Safeguarding. 

St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust expects to receive support throughout the year from its External Auditors on compliance 
and accounting practices.  Due to the nature of the start-up of SMCCAT, this has not been possible through the period June to August 
2019. 

The Finance and Audit Committee will receive monthly management accounts and balance sheet reports, including cashflow 
statements and working capital analysis, together with a detailed analysis of all significant variances. Compliance with the Scheme of 
Delegation is also monitored by the Finance and Audit Committee, which reviews the Scheme annually.  

The Trust Board approved the budget bearing in mind the requirement to achieve a balanced budget and to ensure that the Trust 
remains a “going concern”. The Trust Board also receive and approve the Trustees annual report and accounts together with external 
auditor’s management Letter. 

Better purchasing – ensuring value for money 

Contracts and services are regularly appraised and renegotiated when appropriate to ensure value for money. St Margaret Clitherow 
Catholic Academy Trust takes advantage of other Trusts within the Diocese, when appropriate, to obtain economies of scale. 

Reviewing controls and managing risk 

Monthly budget monitoring reports will be prepared for review by the Trust CFO and reviewed by the School Head teacher; appropriate 
action will be taken to address any variances that may have an impact on the budget out-turn. St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy 
Trust ensures that all surplus cash balances will be invested in interest bearing accounts to maximise interest earning potential. 
Investment institutions are selected carefully to provide the most acceptable balance of return and risk 

The purpose of the system of internal control  

The system of internal control is designed to manage risk to a reasonable level rather than to eliminate all risk of failure to achieve 
policies, aims and objectives; therefore, it can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness. The system of 
internal control is based on an on-going process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of Trust policies, aims 
and objectives.  Also, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised, the impact should they be realised and to manage them 
efficiently, effectively and economically. The system of internal control has been in place in St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy 
Trust for the period 1st June 2019 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report and financial statements. 

Capacity to handle risk  

The Trust Board has reviewed the key risks to which the Trust is exposed together with the operating, financial and compliance controls 
that have been implemented to mitigate those risks. The Trust Board is of the view that there is a formal ongoing process for risks 
management that has been in place for the period 1st June 2019 to 31 August 2019 and up to the date of approval of the annual report 
and financial statements. This process is regularly reviewed by the Trust Finance and Audit Committee and the Trust Board.  

The risk and control framework  

At the introduction of the Trust on 1 June 2019, the existing controls within each schools were adopted. During the period to 31 August 
2019 these controls which were overseen by interim staff engaged by the Trustees to manage the finance and operations during the 
initial period of existence. 

A Chief Finance and Operating Officer was recruited on 1 November 2019 and since taken up the post is in the process of establishing 
the following robust financial systems and controls: 

The Trust’s system of internal financial control is based on a framework of regular management information and administrative 
procedures including the segregation of duties and a system of delegation and accountability. In particular, it includes:  

Comprehensive budgeting and monitoring systems with an annual budget and periodic financial reports which are reviewed and 
agreed by the Trust Board 

Regular reviews by the Finance Committee of reports which indicate financial performance against the budget/forecasts and of major 
purchase plans, capital works and expenditure programmes in line with the Scheme of Delegation  

Setting targets to measure financial and other performance 

Clearly defined purchasing (asset purchase or capital investment) guidelines 

Delegation of authority and segregation of duties 
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Identification and management of risks 

The Trust Board has considered the need for a specific Internal Audit function and is in the process of appointing an internal auditor. 
No internal audit visits took place in the period due to the late conversion to academy status. The Internal Audit function will, during 
2019/20, report directly to the Finance and Audit Committee.  

Review of effectiveness 

As Accounting Officer, the Chief Executive Officer has responsibility for reviewing the effectiveness of the system of internal control. 

This responsibility is delegated to the Chief Finance and Operating Officer. Due to the timing of the start-up of the Trust an independent 

internal review was not carried out. However, the ESFA has carried out an audit to assure itself of the management of the Trust. During 

the year 2019/20, the review will be informed by: 

The work of the Internal Auditor 

The work of the External Auditor 

The financial management and governance self-assessment process 

The work of the Chief Finance and Operating Officer within the Trust who has responsibility for the development and maintenance 
of the internal control framework 

The Accounting Officer will be advised of the implications of the result of their review of the system of internal control by the Finance 

and Audit Committee and a plan to address weaknesses and ensure continuous improvement of the system will take place. 

Approved by order of the members of the Trust Board on 12 March 2020 and signed on its behalf by: 

 

 

Dominic Brendan Paisley                                                                                A Rice 
Chair of Trust Board       Chief Executive Officer                                                                        
        Accounting Officer 
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Statement on Regularity, Propriety and Compliance for the Period Ended 31 August 2019  

 

As Accounting Officer of St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust, I have considered my responsibility to notify the Trust Board 
and the Education and Skills Funding Agency of material irregularity, impropriety and non-compliance with terms and conditions of all 
funding received by the Trust, under the funding agreement in place between the Trust and the Secretary of State. As part of my 
consideration, I have had due regard to the requirements of the Academies Financial Handbook.  

I confirm that I and the Trust Board are able to identify any material irregular, or improper use of funds by the Trust or material non‐
compliance with the terms and conditions of funding under the Trust’s funding agreement and the Academies Financial Handbook.  

I can confirm that during the period between April 2019 and August 2019 when the Trust was starting up, the controls, structures and 
procedures were not in place as they should have been. This has led to some areas of development, which have since been rectified 
and improved. I acknowledge the findings of the external audit report, and that these irregularities arose due to the pace at which the 
Trust formed. The following areas, as highlighted in the management report, can now be evidenced and were in place by February 
2020:  

 
• Monthly management accounts  

• Chief Finance and Operating officer  

• Internal control, financial reporting and risk management procedures  

• Internal scrutiny reviews  

• Tendering policies 

• Purchase, expense and credit card transactions 

 
  
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

A Rice 
Chief Executive Officer 
Accounting Officer        
 
Date: 12 March 2020 
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Statement of Trustees’ Responsibilities for the Period Ended 31 August 2019 

 

The Trustees (who act as Governors for charitable activities of St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust and are also the directors 
of the Charitable Company for the purposes of company law) are responsible for preparing the Trustees’ Report and the financial 
statements in accordance with the Annual Accounts Requirements issued by the Education and Skills Funding Agency, United Kingdom 
Accounting Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice) and applicable law and regulations.  

Company law requires the Trustees to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under company law the Trustees must not 
approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Charitable 
Company and of its incoming resources and application of resources, including its income and expenditure for that year. In preparing 
these financial statements, the Trustees are required to:  

Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently 

Observe the methods and principles in the Charities SORP 2015 and the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 

Make judgments and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent 

State whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained 
in the financial statements 

Prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the Charitable Company will 
continue in business 

The Trustees are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the Charitable Company’s 
transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Charitable Company and enable them to 
ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the 
Charitable Company and, hence, for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.  

The Trustees are responsible for ensuring that in its conduct and operation the Charitable Company applies financial and other controls, 
which conform to the requirements both of propriety and of good financial management. They are also responsible for ensuring grants 
received from the ESFA/DfE have been applied for the purposes intended.  

The Trustees are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial information included on the Charitable 
Company’s website. Legislation in the United Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ 
from legislation in other jurisdictions.  

Approved by order of the members of the Board of Trustees on 12 March 2020 and signed on its behalf by:  

 

 

Dominic Brendan Paisley 
Chair of Trust Board 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST MARGARET CLITHEROW CATHOLIC 
ACADEMY TRUST FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 
 
Disclaimer of Opinion 
We were engaged to audit the accounts of St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust for the period ended 31 August 2019 which 

comprise the statement of financial activities, the balance sheet, the statement of cash flows and the notes to the accounts, including 

a summary of significant accounting policies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable 

law and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 'The Financial Reporting Standard 

applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland' (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice), the Charities SORP 2015 and 

the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the Education & Skills Funding Agency. 

We do not express an opinion on the accompanying financial statements of the company. Because of the significance of the matters 
described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we have not been able to obtain sufficient appropriate audit 
evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements. 
 
Basis for disclaimer of opinion 
We have been unable to obtain evidence to support transactions and balances in the financial statements in a number of areas. In 
particular, we have not been able to satisfy ourselves in the following areas: 

• Completeness and accuracy of fund balances transferred to the company on conversion to academy status 

• Completeness and accuracy of transactions and closing balances in respect of bank accounts under the control of the company 

• Completeness and accuracy of fixed assets 

• Lack of independent audit evidence to support material balances and transactions including accrued income, deferred 
income, accruals, employee contracts and purchase transactions 

• Accuracy of analysis of transactions between income headings and between restricted and unrestricted funds 

• Lack of evidence for and accuracy of certain disclosures including capital commitments, staff numbers, operating lease 
commitments, loan balances, negative fund balances, related party transactions and key management remuneration 
 

Conclusions relating to going concern 
We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the ISAs (UK) require us to report to you where: 

• the directors' use of the going concern basis of accounting in the preparation of the accounts is not appropriate; or 

• the directors have not disclosed in the accounts any identified material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt about 
the St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust (the MAT)’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of 
accounting for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the accounts are authorised for issue. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST MARGARET CLITHEROW CATHOLIC 
ACADEMY TRUST FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 
 

Other information 

The directors are responsible for the other information, which comprises the information included in the annual report other than the 

accounts and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the accounts does not cover the other information and, except to the extent 

otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the accounts, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the 

other information is materially inconsistent with the accounts or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be 

materially misstated. If we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine 

whether there is a material misstatement in the accounts or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work 

we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. 

We have nothing to report in this regard 

Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006 

Because of the significance of the matter described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we have been unable 

to form an opinion, whether based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit: 

• the information given in the directors' report including the incorporated strategic report for the financial period for which the 
accounts are prepared is consistent with the accounts; and 

• the directors' report including the incorporated strategic report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal 
requirements 

 

Matters on which we are required to report by exception 

Notwithstanding our disclaimer of an opinion on the financial statements, in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the St 
Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust (the MAT) and its environment obtained in the course of the audit, performed subject to 
the pervasive limitation described above, we have not identified material misstatements in the directors' report, including the 
incorporated strategic report. 
 
Arising from the limitation of our work referred to above:  

• we have not obtained all the information and explanations that we considered necessary for the purpose of our audit; 

• we have not been able to determine the adequacy of returns for branches not visited by us; and  

• we were unable to determine whether adequate accounting records have been kept. 
 

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us to report to you 

if, in our opinion: 

• the accounts are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or 

• certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made. 
 

Responsibilities of directors 
As explained more fully in the statement of directors' responsibilities, the directors are responsible for the preparation of the accounts 
and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable 
the preparation of accounts that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 
 
In preparing the accounts, the directors are responsible for assessing the St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust (the MAT)’s 
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the charitable company, or have no realistic alternative but to do so. 
 
Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the accounts 
Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the company’s financial statements in accordance with International Standards on Auditing 
(UK) and to issue an auditor’s report. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ST MARGARET CLITHEROW CATHOLIC 
ACADEMY TRUST FOR THE PERIOD ENDED 31 AUGUST 2019 
 
However, because of the matter described in the basis for disclaimer of opinion section of our report, we were not able to obtain 
sufficient appropriate audit evidence to provide a basis for an audit opinion on these financial statements. 
 
We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements in the UK, including the FRC’s Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements. 
 
Use of our report 
This report is made solely to the charitable company's members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies 
Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the charitable company's members those matters we are 
required to state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or 
assume responsibility to anyone other than the charitable company and the charitable company's members as a body, for our audit 
work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Graham Fitzgerald BA FCA DChA (Senior Statutory Auditor) 

for and on behalf of Baldwins Audit Services ……………………………….. 

 

Statutory Auditor Wynyard Park House 

 Wynyard Avenue 

 Wynyard 

 TS22 5TB 
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In accordance with the terms of our engagement letter dated 1 October 2019 and further to the requirements of the Education & 
Skills Funding Agency (ESFA) as included in the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019, we have carried out an engagement to 
obtain limited assurance about whether the expenditure disbursed and income received by St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy 
Trust during the period 29 May 2019 to 31 August 2019 have been applied to the purposes identified by Parliament and the financial 
transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 
  
This report is made solely to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust and ESFA in accordance with the terms of our 
engagement letter. Our work has been undertaken so that we might state to the St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust and 
ESFA those matters we are required to state in a report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not 
accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust and ESFA, for our work, for this 
report, or for the conclusion we have formed. 
  
  
Respective responsibilities of St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust's accounting officer and the reporting accountant  
The accounting officer is responsible, under the requirements of St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust’s funding agreement 
with the Secretary of State for Education dated 29 May 2019 and the Academies Financial Handbook, extant from 1 September 
2018, for ensuring that expenditure disbursed and income received is applied for the purposes intended by Parliament and the 
financial transactions conform to the authorities which govern them. 
  
  
Our responsibilities for this engagement are established in the United Kingdom by our profession’s ethical guidance, and are to 
obtain limited assurance and report in accordance with our engagement letter and the requirements of the Academies Accounts 
Direction 2018 to 2019. We report to you whether anything has come to our attention in carrying out our work which suggests that 
in all material respects, expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 29 May 2019 to 31 August 2019 have not 
been applied to purposes intended by Parliament or that the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern 
them. 
  
  
Approach 
We conducted our engagement in accordance with the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by ESFA. We performed 
a limited assurance engagement as defined in our engagement letter. 
  
  
The objective of a limited assurance engagement is to perform such procedures as to obtain information and explanations in order 
to provide us with sufficient appropriate evidence to express a negative conclusion on regularity. 
  
  
A limited assurance engagement is more limited in scope than a reasonable assurance engagement and consequently does not 
enable us to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant matters that might be identified in a reasonable 
assurance engagement. Accordingly, we do not express a positive opinion. 
  
  
Our engagement includes examination, on a test basis, of evidence relevant to the regularity and propriety of the St Margaret 
Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust (the MAT)'s income and expenditure. 
  

 
 

The work undertaken to draw to our conclusion includes: 

• discussions with the Accounting Officer and finance team 

• review of Internal Assurance reports 

• review of trustee and committee meeting minutes 

• review of finance and other relevant policies 

• review of purchases, expenses and expense claims on a sample basis including the application of 

• review of gifts and hospitality transactions including the application of controls 

• review of credit and debit card transactions including the application of controls 

• review of payroll transactions on a sample bases including the application of controls 
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• review of potential special payments to staff 

• review of leases and consideration of areas where borrowing may have been incurred 

• consideration of transactions with related and connected parties 

• review of register of business interests for completeness and compliance with regulations 

• enquiries into transactions that may require disclosure under ESFA delegated authority rules 

• consideration of value for money and appropriateness of transactions 
  
  
  
 
Modified Conclusion 
In the course of our work, other than the matters noted below, nothing has come to our attention which suggests that in all material 
respects the expenditure disbursed and income received during the period 29 May 2019 to 31 August 2019 has not been applied to 
purposes intended by Parliament and the financial transactions do not conform to the authorities which govern them. 
  
We identified the following matters in the course of our work: 

• Monthly management accounts have not been prepared and therefore not provided to the chair of trustees 

• No Chief financial officer was in place until after the end of the accounting period 

• Internal control, financial reporting and risk management procedures were not fully developed until after the end of the 
accounting period 

• No internal scrutiny reviews have yet taken place 

• We have been unable to confirm if procedures have been followed in respect of tendering policies 

• We have been unable to obtain evidence on all of our sample of purchase, expense and credit card transactions, 
therefore have been unable to draw conclusions as to the regularity of expenditure 

• There was no trust website  

• As we have not received the requested self-assessment checklist on regularity, we have not been able to fully assess risk 
and our work on regularity has been limited  

  
  
  
  
  
Reporting Accountant 
Baldwins Audit Services 
  
Dated:   



 

St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust  
 

 

23 
 

 



 

St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust  
Statement of Financial Activities for the Period Ended 31 August 2019  

 

 

24 
 

 (Including Income and Expenditure Account and Statement of Total Recognised Gains and Losses) 

 

 Note Unrestricted 
Funds  
 £000 

Restricted 
General 

Funds  
£000 

Restricted 
Fixed 
Asset 
Funds 
£000 

 Total 
2018/19  

£000 

Income and endowments from:       

Donations and capital grants:       

. Transfer from local authority on 
conversion 

3 837 (2,246) 251  (1,158) 

. Other donations and capital grants 3 5 - -  5 

Charitable activities:       

   Funding for the Trust's        

   educational operations 4 - 2,987 -  2,987 

Other trading activities 5 108 - -  108 

Investments 6 - - -  - 

Total  950 741 251  1,942 

       

Expenditure on:       

Raising funds  - - -  - 

Charitable activities:       

. Academy trust educational operations 7 127 3,556 5  3,688 

Other  - - -  - 

Total  127 3,556 5  3,688 

       

Net income / (expenditure)  823 
 

(2,815) 246  (1,746) 

       

Other recognised gains / (losses):       

Actuarial (losses) / gains on defined       

benefit pension schemes 18,27 - (435)   (435) 
       

Net movement in funds  823 (3,250) 246  (2,181) 

       

Reconciliation of funds       

Total funds brought forward  - - -  - 

Total funds carried forward  823 (3,250) 246  (2,181) 

 

All of the Trusts’ activities derive from continuing operations during the above financial period.
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  2019 2019 

  £000 £000 

    

Fixed assets 
   

Tangible assets 13 
 

214     

Current assets 
   

Debtors 14 1,238  
Cash at bank and in hand 

 
983  

  2,221      

Liabilities 
   

Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 15 (1,605)  

Net current assets   616     

Total assets less current liabilities 
  

830 

Creditors: amount falling due after more than one 
year 

17  (76) 

Net assets excluding pension liability   754 
    

Defined benefit pension scheme liability 18,27 
 

(2,935) 

Total net assets    (2,181)     

Funds of the Trust: 
   

Restricted funds 
   

  . Fixed asset fund 18 246  
  . Restricted income fund 18 (315)  
  . Pension reserve 18 (2,935)  

Total restricted funds   (3,004)     

Unrestricted income funds 18 
 

823 

Total funds   (2,181) 

 
 

The financial statements on pages 20 to 42 were approved by the Trustees and authorised for issue on 12 March 2020 and are signed 
on their behalf by: 

 

 

Dominic Brendan Paisley 
Chair of Trust Board 
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 Notes 2019  

£000 
Cash flows from operating activities   

   

Net cash provided by operating activities  21 951 

   

Net Cash flows from investing activities 22 32 

   

Change in cash and cash equivalents in the reporting period  983 

   

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 June 2019  - 

   

Cash and cash equivalents at 31 August 2019 23 983 
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1 Accounting policies 

A summary of the principal accounting policies adopted (which have been applied consistently, except where noted), judgements and 
key sources of estimation uncertainty, is set out below. 

1.1 Basis of preparation 

The financial statements of the Trust, which is a public benefit entity under FRS 102, have been prepared under the historical cost 
convention in accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), 
the Accounting and Reporting by Charities: Statement of Recommended Practice applicable to charities preparing their accounts in 
accordance with the Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the United Kingdom and Republic of Ireland (FRS 102), (Charities ‘SORP 
2015’), the Academies Accounts Direction 2018 to 2019 issued by the ESFA, the Charities Act 2011 and the Companies Act 2006.  

1.2 Fund accounting 

Unrestricted income funds represent those resources which may be used towards meeting any of the charitable objects of the Trust at 
the discretion of the Trustees. 

Restricted General funds are resources subject to specific restrictions imposed by funders or donors, and include grants from the 
Education Funding Agency/Department for Education. 

Restricted Fixed Assets Funds are resources which are to be applied to specific capital purposes imposed by the Education Funding 
Agency and other funders, where the asset acquired or created is held for a specific purpose on a continuing basis.  

1.3 Incoming resources 

All incoming resources are recognised when the Trust has entitlement to the funds, certainty of receipt and the amount can be 
measured with sufficient reliability.  

Grant income is included in the Statement of Financial Activities on a receivable basis. The balance of income received for specific 
purposes but not expended during the period is shown in the relevant funds on the balance sheet.  Where income is received in advance 
of entitlement of receipt, its recognition is deferred and is included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before 
income in received, the income is accrued and is included in debtors as accrued income.  

The general annual grant (‘the GAG’) is recognised in full in the Statement of Financial Activities in the year for which it is  receivable, 
any abatement in respect of the period is deducted from income and is recognised as a liability.   

Capital grants are recognised when there is an entitlement and are not deferred over the life of the asset on which they are expended. 
Unspent amounts of capital grant are reflected in the balance in the restricted fixed asset fund.  

Other grants from government agencies and other bodies are recognised in the period in which they are receivable to the extent the 
conditions of funding have been met.  Where income is received in advance of entitlement of receipt its recognition is deferred and 
included in creditors as deferred income. Where entitlement occurs before income is received the income is accrued. 

Sponsorship income provided to the Academy which amounts to a donation is recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities in the 
period in which it is receivable where there is certainty of receipt and it is measurable. 

The value of donated services and gifts in kind provided to the Trust are recognised at their open market value in the period in which 
they are receivable in incoming resources, where the benefit to the Trust can be reliably measured.  An equivalent amount is included 
as expenditure under the relevant heading in the Statement of Financial Activities, except where the gift in kind was a fixed asset in 
which case the amount is included in the appropriate category and depreciated over the useful economic life in accordance with Trust‘s 
policies. 

Where assets and liabilities are received by the academy trust on conversion to an academy, the transferred assets are measured at 
fair value and recognised in the balance sheet at the point when the risks and rewards of ownership pass to the academy trust . An 
equal amount of income is recognised as transfer on conversion within Donations and capital grant income to the net assets received.  

During the period ended 31 August 2019, 13 academies was transferred on conversion from local authority. The conversion from a 
state-maintained school to an academy trust involved the transfer of identifiable assets and liabilities and the operation of the school 
for £nil consideration. The substance of the transfer is that of a gift and it has been accounted for on that basis as set out below.  

The assets and liabilities transferred on conversion from schools listed on note 29 to the academy trust have been valued at fair value. 
The fair value has been derived based on that of equivalent items. The amount has been recognised under the appropriate balance 
sheet categories, with a corresponding amount recognised in SOFA. Donations – transfer from local authority on conversion in the 
Statement of Financial Activities, analysed under unrestricted funds, restricted funds, and restricted fixed asset funds. Further details 
of the transaction are set out in the appropriate notes below. 
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1.4 Resources expended 

Expenditure is recognised once there is a legal or constructive obligation to transfer economic benefit to a third party. It is probable 
that a transfer of economic benefit will be required in settlement and the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably. 
Expenditure is classified by activity. The costs of each activity are made up of the total of direct costs and shared costs, including support 
costs involved in undertaking each activity. Direct costs attributable to a single activity are allocated directly to that activity. Shared 
costs which contribute to more than one activity and shared costs which are not attributable to a single activity are apportioned 
between those activities on a basis consistent with the use of resources. Central staff costs are allocated on the basis of time spent, 
and depreciation charges allocated on the portion of the assets’ use. 

Charitable activities and Governance costs are incurred on the Trusts’ educational operations, including support costs and costs relating 
to the governance of the Trust apportioned to charitable activities. 

1.5 Going concern 

The Trustees assess whether the use of going concern is appropriate i.e. whether there are any material uncertainties related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Academy to continue as a going concern.  The Trustees make this 
assessment in respect of a period of at least one year from the date of authorisation for issue of the financial statements and have 
concluded that the Trust has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and there are no 
material uncertainties about the Academy to continue as a going concern, thus they continue to adopt a going concern basis in 
preparing the financial statements. 

1.6 Intangible fixed assets and amortisation 

Intangible assets costing more than £500 are capitalised and recognised when future economic benefits are probable and the cost or 
value of the asset can be measured reliably. Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at cost 
net of amortisation and any provision for impairment. 

Intangible assets are amortised at 25% straight line. 

1.7 Tangible fixed assets  

All assets costing more than £1,000, with the exception of Land & Building (which should be over £5k), and with a useful life of more 
than three years, are capitalised. 

A review for impairment of a fixed asset is carried out if events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of any fixed 
asset may not be realisable, Shortfalls between the carrying value of a fixed asset and their realisable value are recognised as 
impairments.  Impairment losses are recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities. 

Software purchased independently of computers is included in Intangible fixed assets in accordance with FRS 102. 

Tangible fixed assets are carried at cost net of depreciation and any provision for impairment. Depreciation is calculated to write off 
the cost of tangible fixed assets over their estimated useful lives as follows: 

Leasehold land improvement  20 years 

Church owned land improvement    

Church owned building improvements   

Plant and machinery   7 years  

Furniture and equipment  7 years 

Computer equipment   3 years 

(Land will not be depreciated) 

The academy trust occupies the footprint of the school building which is owned by its trustees, the Diocese of Middlesborough. The 
Diocese are the providers of the buildings on the same basis as when the academy was a maintained school. The academy trust 
occupies the buildings under a mere licence. This continuing permission of the trustees is pursuant to, and subject to, the trustees' 
charitable objects, and is part of the Catholic Church's contribution since 1847 to provide State funded education in partnership with 
the State. The licence delegates aspects of the management of the land and buildings to the academy trust for the time being, but 
does not vest any rights over the land in the academy trust. The trustees have given an undertaking to the Secretary of State that 
they will not give the academy trust less than two years notice to terminate the occupation of the buildings. Having considered the 
factual matrix under which the academy trust is occupying the buildings the trustees have concluded that the value of the land and 
buildings occupied by the academy trust will not be recognised on the balance sheet of the academy. Subsequent expenditure 
funded by the academy has been capitalised. 
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The remaining land is owned by the local authorities and leased to the trust for 125 years. Building improvements funded by the 
academy have been capitalised at cost. 

1.8 Interest receivable 

Interest on funds held on deposit is included when receivable and the amount can be measured reliably by the Trust, this is normally 
upon notification of the interest paid or payable by the bank. 

1.9 Stocks 

Stocks are valued at the lower of cost or net realisable value after making due allowance for obsolete or slow moving stock. Cost 
includes all direct costs and an appropriate proportion of fixed and variable overheads. 

1.10 Debtors 

Trade and other debtors are recognised at the settlement amount after any trade discount offered. Prepayments are valued at the 
amount prepaid net of any trade discount. 

1.11 Cash at bank and in hand 

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash and highly liquid investments with a short maturity of three months or less from the date of 
acquisition or opening of the deposit or similar account. 

1.12 Liabilities and provisions 

Liabilities are recognised when there is an obligation at the balance sheet date as a result of a past event, it is probable that a transfer 
of economic benefit will be required in settlement and the amount of the settlement can be estimated reliably. Liabilities are recognised 
at the amount the Trust anticipates it will pay to settle the debt or the amount it has received as advance payments for the goods or 
services it must provide. 

Provisions are recognised when the Trust has an obligation at the reporting date as a result of a past event which is likely to result in 
the transfer of economic benefits and the obligation can be estimated reliably.  

Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the amounts required to settle the obligation. Where the effect of the time value of 
money is material the provision is based on the present value of those amounts discounted at the pre-tax discount rate that reflects 
the risk specific to the liability. The unwinding of the discount is recognised within interest payable and similar charges. 

1.13 Leased assets 

Rentals under operating leases are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term. There were no benefits received as an incentive 
to sign an operating lease contract. 

1.14 Financial instruments 

The Trust only has financial assets and financial liabilities of a kind that qualify as basic financial instruments. Basic financial instruments 
are initially recognised at transaction value and subsequently measured at their settlement value with the exception of bank loans 
which are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method. 

1.15 Investments 

Investments are carried at cost. The Trustees’ investment powers are governed by the Memorandum and Articles of Association and 
allow St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust to invest in a wide range of investment vehicles without restriction. 

1.16 Taxation 

The academy trust is considered to pass the tests set out in Paragraph 1 Schedule 6 of the Finance Act 2010 and therefore it meets the 
definition of a charitable company for UK corporation tax purposes. Accordingly, the Trust is potentially exempt from taxation in respect 
of income or capital gains received within categories covered by Chapter 3 Part 11 of the Corporation Tax Act 2010 or Section 256 of 
the Taxation of Chargeable Gains Act 1992, to the extent that such income or gains are applied exclusively to charitable purposes. 

1.17 Pensions 

Retirement benefits to employees of the Trust are provided by the Teachers’ Pension Scheme (‘TPS’) and the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (‘LGPS’). These are defined benefit schemes, are contracted out of the State Earnings-Related Pension Scheme (‘SERPS’) (until 
April 2016), and the assets are held separately from those of the Trust.  

The TPS is an unfunded scheme and contributions are calculated so as to spread the cost of pensions over employees’ working l ives 
with the Trust in such a way that the pension cost is a substantially level percentage of current and future pensionable payroll. The 
contributions are determined by the Government Actuary on the basis of quinquennial valuations using a prospective benefit method. 
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As stated in Note 26, the TPS is a multi-employer scheme and the Trust is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and 
liabilities of the scheme on a consistent and reasonable basis. The TPS is therefore treated as a defined contribution scheme and the 
contributions recognised in the period to which they relate. 

The LGPS is a funded multi-employer scheme and the assets are held separately from those of the Trust in separate Trustee 
administered funds. Pension scheme assets are measured at fair value and liabilities are measured on an actuarial basis using the 
projected unit credit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the current rate of return on a high quality corporate bond of 
equivalent term and currency to the liabilities. The actuarial valuations are obtained at least triennially and are updated at each balance 
date. The amounts charged to operating surplus are the current service costs, and the cost of scheme introductions, benefit changes, 
settlements and curtailments. They are included as part of staff costs as incurred. 

Net interest on the net defined benefit liability/asset is also recognised in the Statement of Financial Activities incorporating income 
and expenditure accounts and comprises the interest cost on the defined benefit obligation and interest income on the scheme assets, 
calculated by multiplying the fair value of the scheme assets at the beginning of the period by the rate used to discount the benefit 
obligations. The difference between the interest income on the scheme assets and the actual return on the scheme assets is recognised 
in other recognised gains and losses. 

Actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately in other recognised gains and losses. 

1.18 Critical accounting estimates and areas of judgement 

The value of fixed assets acquired on conversion to academy status has been estimated based on a review of significant items at each 
academy joining the trust and an estimate of the book value of those assets as at that date. 

The present value of the Local Government Pension Scheme defined benefit liability depends on a number of factors that are 
determined on an actuarial basis using a variety of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost or income for 
pensions include the discount rate. Any changes in these assumptions, which are disclosed in note 36, will impact the carrying amount 
of the pension liability. Furthermore a roll forward approach which projects results from the latest full actuarial valuation performed 
at 31 March 2016 has been used by the actuary in valuing the pensions liability at 31 August 2019. Any differences between the figures 
derived from the roll forward approach and a full actuarial valuation would impact on the carrying amount of the pension liability. 

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions 

Based on the period under consideration, there has been no critical areas of judgement. 

1.19 Reserves and Investment policy 

The Trustees have accepted the need for general long-term reserves to be maintained at a minimum level approximately equal to 3% 
of total income. 

To help fund short and medium term investment, the Trustees may transfer to restricted funds an annual variable sum up to a 
maximum of 12% of government funds. This has not been necessary for the period ending 31 August 2019. 

1.20 Redundancy and severance payments 

Where the Trust has a constructive liability to make a redundancy payment this is recognised as and when the liability arises. Where 
the Trustees have agreed that it is in the interest of the Trust to make a severance payment which is not contractual, this is recognised 
as a liability once the decision to make a payment has been ratified at a meeting of the Trust Board. 

1.21 Agency arrangements 

The Trust does not act as an agent in distributing 16-19 bursary funds from ESFA.  

2. Accounting Estimates 

McCloud 

In 2015 the government introduced reforms to public sector pensions resulting in most public sector workers being transferred to a 
new scheme. In December 2018, the Court of Appeal ruled that the ‘transitional protections’ offered to some members of the judges 
and firefighter schemes as part of the reforms amounted to unlawful discrimination. While the judgement was not in relation to the 
LGPS it is reasonable to expect that it will need to be applied to this scheme by the government. Actuaries have estimated that the 
additional liabilities associated with this to be around 3-4% of active liabilities. As this has been considered to be potentially material 
to the financial statements the year end valuation performed by the actuary has included an approximate calculation of the McCloud 
valuation. This has increased the LGPS liability by £146K as at 31 August 2019. 

 

 



 

St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust  
Notes to the Financial Statements for the Period Ended 31 August 2019 

 

31 
 

GMP 

GMP This case related to the equalisation for men and women of guaranteed minimum pension (GMP) for those who were 
contracted out of the State Second Pension between 6 April 1978 and 6 April 1997. In October 2018 the High Court ruled that 
equalisation of GMP was required. This case was in relation to Lloyds Bank and HM Treasury have since gone on record to state 
public sector schemes have a method to equalise GMP already. Although there is some judgement in how this equalisation works 
and is reflected in the LGPS valuations, actuaries have estimated that the impact of GMP indexation to be around 0.3% of total 
liabilities and they have included an approximate calculation of the GMP valuation. This has increased the LGPS liability by £5K as at 
31 August 2019. 

 

 

3 Donations and capital grants 

 

 
Unrestricted 

Funds 
£000 

 
 

Restricted 
Funds 
£000  

 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
£000 

  

 
Total 
2019 
£000 

Transfer from LA on conversion 837  -  251  1,088 

Defined Pensions obligation 
inherited 

  (2,246)  -  (2,246) 

Other donations 5  -  -  5  
842  (2,246)  251  (1,153) 

The income from donations and capital grants excluding defined pensions obligation inherited was £1,093K of which £842K was 
unrestricted and £251K was restricted fixed assets. 

 

 

4 Funding for the Trust’s educational operations 
 

Unrestricted 
Funds 
£000 

 
Restricted 

Funds 
£000 

 
Total 
2019 
£000 

 

DfE / ESFA grants 
     

    

. General Annual Grant (GAG) -  2,392  2,392  

. Start Up Grants -                      500  500  

. Other DfE/ESFA grants -  12  12  

. Pupil premium   -  2  2  

 -  2,906  2,906  

Other Government grants 
     

 

. Local authority grants - 
 

56 
 

56   
- 

 
56 

 
56  

Other funding for the academy 
trust’s educational operations 

 
- 

  
                      25 

  
25 

 

Total -  2,987  2,987  

The income from funding for educational operations was £2,987K of which nil was unrestricted and £2,987K restricted. 

The other DfE/ESFA grants above includes DFE Academy conversion grant and rates reclaim. 

5 Other trading activities 

 Unrestricted 
Funds 
£000 

 Restricted 
Funds 
£000 

 Total 
2019 
£000 
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Lettings Income 1    1  

Music income 1  -  1  

Catering income 24  -  24  

Other income (incl. school buses) 82  -  82  
 

108  -  108  

The income from other trading activities was £108K of which nil was restricted and £108K was unrestricted. 

 

 

 

6 Investment income 

 

Unrestricted 
Funds 
£000 

 
Restricted 

Funds 
£000  

Total 
2019 
£000  

Short term deposits -  -  -   
-  -  -  

The income from investment income was nil. 

7 Expenditure 

 Non Pay Expenditure 

      

 

Staff 
Costs 
£000 

 
Premises 

£000 

 
Other 
£000 

Total 
2018/19 

£000 

 

Academy’s educational operations:      

. Direct costs 1,880 - 168 2,048  

. Allocated support costs 357 57 1,997 2,411  

Teaching School - - 5 5  
 

2,237 57 2,170 4,464  

 

 
Net income / (expenditure) for the period includes: 

  2018/19 
£000 

  

Operating lease rentals:   

Other operating leases                                                                                                                                               1   

Depreciation                                                                                                                                                                 5   

Fees payable to auditor for:   

. auditor                                                                                                                                                                      20    

. other services                                                                                                                                                            4  
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7 Expenditure on charitable activities 

 
 
  

  Total 
2019 
£000 

 

    

Direct costs – educational operations   2,048  

Support costs – educational operations  1,616  

Support costs – governance  24  

  3,688  

Direct costs – educational operations   

       Total  
2019  
£000 

 

Wages and salaries 1,475 

National insurance 144 

Pensions costs 240 

Supply teachers 21 

Staff development 6 

Educational supplies 120 

Other staff costs 21 

Staff related insurance 21 

Total  2,048 
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7 Expenditure on charitable activities (continued) 

 
Support costs – educational operations 

 Total 
2019 
£000 

 

    
Wages and salaries  293  
National Insurance  16  
Pensions costs  48  
Educational consultancy (Bought-in-professional service)   572  
Diocesan Levy   12  
Technology costs  27  
Maintenance of premises  35  
Other premises costs  22  
Cleaning and caretaking  32  
Rent and rates  12  
Energy costs  37  
Insurance  16  
Security and transport  12  
Catering  49  
Operating leases  1  
Administrative expenses  63  
Depreciation  5  
Special facilities  35  
FRS102 Pension Costs  254  
Improvements to diocesan property  75  

Total  1,616  

 
 
Support costs - Governance 

 2019 
£000 

 

    
Auditors’ remuneration  20  
Other costs  4  
    

Total  24  

8 Analysis of grants 

 

Unrestricted 
Funds 
£000 

 
Restricted 

Funds 
£000  

Total 
2019 
£000 

Improvements to diocesan property 
occupied by the academy trust 

-  75  75 
 

-  75  75 

 

9 Staff and Staff Costs 

Staff costs 

Staff costs during the period were: 
Total 
2019 
£000 

 

Wages and salaries 1,761  

Social security costs (Includes Apprenticeship Levy) 160  

Pension Costs 288  
 

2,209  

Supply staff costs 21  

Staff restructuring costs 7  
 

2,237  
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Staff restructuring costs comprise: 

Severance payments 7  
   

 7  

 
Included in staff restructuring costs are non-statutory and or non-contractual severance payments totalling £6,568. 
Individually the payments were: £6,568 
 

Staff numbers 

The average number of persons employed by the academy trust during the period was as follows: 

  
2019 

No. 
 

Teachers 335  

Administration and support 193  

Management 12  
 

540  
 

2019 
FTE 

 

Teachers 189  

Administration and support 58  

Management 11  
 

258  

Higher paid staff 

The number of employees whose annualised employee benefits (excluding employer pension costs and NI) exceeded £60,000 was: 

 

The CEO, who is not a trustee, was the highest paid agent during the period ended 31 August 2019 and received the equivalent annual 
remuneration as follows: 2019 £130K-£140K. The CEO was paid as an agent to the organisation due to a secondment arrangement. 

Key management personnel  

The key management personnel of the Trust comprise the Trustees and the senior management team as listed on page 3. The total 
amount of employee benefits (including employer pension contributions and NI) received by key management personnel for their 
services to the Trust was £0.811 million. 

10 Trustees’ remuneration and expenses 

The Chief Executive Officer only receives remuneration in respect of services she provides undertaking her role of Chief Executive 
Officer. Trustees did not receive any payments other than reimbursed expenses from St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust in 
respect of their role as Trustees.  

No remuneration was paid to any trustee in the year. 

11 Trustees and Officers insurance 

The academy trust has opted into the Department for Education’s Risk Protection Arrangement (RPA), an alternative to insurance 
where UK government funds cover losses that arise. This scheme protects trustees and officers from claims arising from negligent acts, 
errors or omissions occurring whilst on academy trust business, and provides cover up to £10,000,000. It is not possible to quantify the 
trustees and officers' indemnity element from the overall cost of the RPA scheme. 

 

 
 2019 

No. 
  

£60,001 - £70,000 5   

£70,001 - £80,000 3  
 

£80,001 - £90,000 1   
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12 Central services 

The newly established Trust will provide the following central services to its schools in 2019/20: 

Chief Executive Officer 

Chief Finance and Operating Officer 

Governance Services 

Finance services 

Human resources; 

Educational support services; 

ICT network and services  

Estate and facilities services 

However, during the period ended 31st August 2019 the academy trust did not charge fees for the services provided but will charge 5% 
of GAG income in the financial year commencing September 2020.  

13 Tangible fixed assets 

 Building 
improvements      

Fixtures and 
fittings 

Computer 
equipment 

Total 

 £000 £000 £000 £000 

Cost     

At 1 June 2019 - - - - 

Transfer on conversion from LA - 83 53 136 

Additions 46 34 3 83 

Disposals     

At 31 August 2019 46 117 56 219 

     

Depreciation     

At 1 June 2019 - - - - 

Charged in year - 2 3 5 

Re classification - - - - 

Disposals     

At 31 August 2019 - 2 3 5 

     

Net book values     

At 31 August 2019 46 115 53 214 

14 Debtors 

 2019 
£000 

 

VAT recoverable 93  

Other debtors  31  

Prepayments and accrued income 1,114  

 1,238  

15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year 

 2019 
£000 

 

Trade creditors 341  

Deficit balance on conversion for Sacred Heart, Northallerton 27  

Diocesan Loans 3  

Other creditors  350  

Accruals and deferred income 884  
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1,605  

 
  

 

16 Deferred income 
 

2019 
£000 

 

Deferred income at 1 June 2019 -  
Released from previous years -  
Resources deferred in the period 570  

Deferred Income at 31 August 2019 570  

  
2019 
£000 

 

Donation 400  

UIFSM 120  

DFC Capital grant 20  

Trip income 7  

SAS Bus and School Fund 17  

Opportunity area income 6  

   

 570  

Deferred income held at 31 August 2019 relates to 2019/20 Universal Infant Free School Meals, DFC capital grant, Trip income etc. 
as shown above. 

17 Creditors: Amount falling due after more than one year 

 2019 
£000 

Diocesan Loans 76 

This loan was provided by the Diocese of Middlesborough for several of its schools in order to enable building capital projects 
over and above the LCVAP allowance. The terms associated with the payback are greater than one year and there is no 
interest on the loan. 

18 Statement of funds 

 

Balance at 1 
June 2019 

£000 
Income 

£000 
Expenditure 

£000 

Gains and 
(losses)   

£000 
 Transfers 

£000 

Balance at 
31 August 

2019  
£000 

Restricted general funds   
    

General Annual Grant (GAG) - 2,392 (2,771) - - (379) 

Start Up Grant * - 500 500* - - - 

Pupil Premium - 2 (2) - - - 

Other grants - 93 (29) - - 64 

Provision for boarding - - - - - - 

Pension reserve - (2,246) (254) (435) - (2,935) 

 - 741 (3,556) (435) - (3,250)  
  

    

 
Restricted fixed asset funds 

  
    

Transfer on conversion 251 - (5) - - 246 

Private sector capital sponsorship - - - - - - 

 251 - (5) - - 246    
  

  
  

 

Total restricted funds 251 741 (3,561) (435) - (3,004)  
  

    

Total unrestricted funds - 950 (127) - - 823 
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Total funds 251 1,691 (3,688) (435) - (2,181) 

 

The specific purposes for which the funds are to be applied are as follows: 

Restricted funds 

Restricted funds represent the cumulative overspent General Annual Grant, other government grants/income and sponsorship income 
carried forward in respect of funding received for the specific purpose of the academy trust’s running costs excluding fixed asset. Under 
the funding agreement with the Secretary of State, the Academies are not subject to a limit on the amount of GAG that can be carried 
forward as at 31 August 2019. 

Unrestricted fund 

Unrestricted funds include balance of conversion plus surpluses generated from Other Trading Activities and are to be used to support 
future general educational purposes either of a revenue or capital nature at the discretion of the board/trustees.  

Restricted fixed asset fund 

This fund represents the cumulative net book value carried forward in respect of the Trust’s tangible and intangible fixed assets plus 
any capital funding received from central/local government and other donors which has not been expended by the balance sheet date. 
The capital funding may be used to complete capital projects or undertake maintenance works on existing tangible fixed assets. The 
fund balance also includes the carrying value of fixed assets of an academy joining the Trust from another academy Trust and all other 
assets donated to the Trust. 

Pension reserve 

This fund includes the pension reserve which identifies the pension deficit of academies joining the Trust from another Academy Trust 
and through which the pension scheme movements are recognised. Where a pension valuation report is received and a surplus or a 
deficit on the defined benefit pension scheme is reported, the movement is recognised where an asset or liability occurred. The reserve 
above is negative because it constitutes a liability.  

Analysis of Academies by fund balances 

 2019 
£000 

 

Our Lady & St Peter (OLP) 90  
St. Augustine’s (SAS) 156  
St. Benedict’s (SBN) 26  
St. Francis Xavier (SFX) 84  
St. George’s SGS) 2  
Sacred Heart (SHN) (36)  
St. John’s Beverley (SJB) 71  
St. Joseph’s (SJP) 42  
St. Mary’s & St Joseph (SMJ) (7)  
St. Mary’s Malton (SMM) (42)  
St. Mary’s Richmond (SMR) 30  
St. Mary’s Market (SMW) (6)  
St. Peter’s (SPS) 99  
MAT Central services (1)  

Total before fixed asset fund and pension reserve 508  
Restricted fixed asset fund 246  
Pension reserve (2,935)  

Total (2,181)  

 

 The Trust will endeavour to support the schools to ensure any deficit balances are eliminated over time. The Trust has chosen to 
pool General Reserves.  

 

 

Analysis of academies by cost 

 Teaching and 
educational 

Other 
support staff 

costs 

 
Educational 

supplies 

  
Total  
2019 
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support staff 
costs 

Other costs 
excluding 

depreciation 
 £000 £000 £000 £000 £000 
Our Lady & St Peter (OLP) 182 43 29 30 284 
St. Augustine’s (SAS) 563 138 39 101 841 
St Benedict’s (SBN) 16 2 1 2 21 
St Francis Xavier (SFX) 431 121 51 160 763 
St George’s SGS) 98 10 4 36 148 
Sacred Heart (SHN) 24 2 - 6 32 
St John’s Beverley (SJB) 96 24 2 9 131 
St Joseph’s (SJP) 51 5 6 11 73 
St Mary’s & St Joseph (SMJ) 57 10 2 13 82 
St Mary’s Malton (SMM) 105 11 6 74 196 
St Mary’s Richmond (SMR) 97 10 10 18 135 
St Mary’s Market (SMW) 77 15 1 5 98 
St Peter’s (SPS) 47 6 3 3 59 
MAT Central services 7 3 9 801 820 
      

 1,851 400 163 1,269 3,683 

      

19 Analysis of net assets between funds 

Fund balances at 31 August 2019 are represented by: 
 

 
Unrestricted 

Funds  
£000 

Restricted 
General 

Funds 
£000 

Restricted 
Fixed Asset 

Funds 
£000 

2019 
Total Funds 

£000 

     

Tangible fixed assets - - 214 214 

Current assets 823 1,350 32 2,205 

Current liabilities - (1,589) - (1,589) 

Non-current liabilities - (76) - (76) 

Pension scheme liability - (2,935) - (2,935) 

Total net assets 823 (3,250) 246 (2,181) 

20 Commitments under operating leases 

At 31 August 2019, the total of the Trust’s future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases was: 

 

2019 
£000 

 

   

Amounts due within one year 21  

Amounts due between one and five years 32  

Amounts due after five years  -     

  53  

21 Reconciliation of net income / (expenditure) 

 2019 
£000 

 

Net income/(expenditure) for the reporting period (as per the statement of financial 
activities) (1,746) 

 

Adjusted for:   

Depreciation [note 13] 5  

Transfer on conversion from LA (251)  

Interest receivable [note 6] -  

Defined benefit pension scheme obligation inherited 2,246  

Defined benefit pension scheme finance cost [note 18,27] 254  
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(Increase)/decrease in stocks -  

(Increase)/decrease in debtors (1,238)  

Increase/(decrease) in creditors 1,681  

Net cash provided by / (used in) operating activities 

951 

 
 
 

22 Cash flows from investing activities 

23 Analysis of cash and cash equivalents 

 At 31 August  
2019 
£000 

 

Cash in hand and at bank 983  

Notice deposits (less than 3 months) -  

Total cash and cash equivalents 983  

24 Members liability 

Each Member of the Charitable Company undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Charitable Company in the event of it being 
wound up while he/she is a Member, or within one year after he/she ceases to be a member, such amount as may be required, not 
exceeding £10 for the debts and liabilities contracted before he/she ceases to be a member. 

25 Pension and similar obligations 

The Trust’s employees belong to two principal pension schemes: The Teachers’ Pension Scheme England and Wales (TPS) for academic 
and related staff, and the Local Government Pension Scheme (LGPS) for non-teaching staff, which is managed by North Yorkshire 
Pension Fund and East Riding Pension Fund. Both are multi-employer defined benefit schemes.  

As described in note 26 the LGPS obligation relates to the employees of the academy trust, who were the employees transferred as 
part of the conversion from the maintained school and new employees who were eligible to, and did, join the scheme in the 
year/period. The obligation in respect of employees who transferred on conversion represents their cumulative service at both the 
predecessor school and the academy trust at the balance sheet date. 

The latest actuarial valuation of the TPS related to the period ended 31 March 2012 and of the LGPS 31 March 2016. 

Contributions amounting to £343,636 were payable to the schemes at 31 August 2019 and are included within creditors. 

26 Teachers’ Pension Scheme  

Introduction 

The Teachers' Pension Scheme (TPS or scheme) is a statutory, unfunded, defined benefit occupational scheme, governed by the 
Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 (as amended), and the Teachers’ Pension Scheme Regulations 2014 (as amended). These 
regulations apply to teachers in schools and other educational establishments, including academies, in England and Wales that are 
maintained by local authorities. In addition, teachers in many independent and voluntary-aided schools and teachers and lecturers in 
some establishments of further and higher education may be eligible for membership. Membership is automatic for full-time 
teachers and lecturers and, from 1 January 2007, automatic too for teachers and lecturers in part-time employment following 
appointment or a change of contract. Teachers and lecturers are able to opt out of the TPS. 

 

The Teachers’ Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account  

 2019 
£000 

  

Dividends, interest and rents from investments -   
Transfer on conversion from LA 115   
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (83)   

Net cash provided by / (used in) investing activities 32   
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Although members may be employed by various bodies, their retirement and other pension benefits are set out in regulations made 
under the Superannuation Act (1972) and Public Service Pensions Act (2013) and are paid by public funds provided by Parliament. 
The TPS is an unfunded scheme and members contribute on a ’pay as you go ‘basis – contributions from members, along with those 
made by employers, are credited to the Exchequer under arrangements governed by the above Acts. 

The Teachers' Pensions Regulations 2010 require an annual account, the Teachers' Pension Budgeting and Valuation Account, to be 
kept of receipts and expenditure (including the cost of pension increases). From 1 April 2001, the Account has been credited with a 
real rate of return, which is equivalent to assuming that the balance in the Account is invested in notional investments that produce 
that real rate of return. 

Valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme 

The latest valuation of the Teachers’ Pension Scheme has now taken place, in line with directions issued by HM Treasury and using 
membership data as at 31 March 2016. As a result of this valuation TPS employers will pay an increased contribution rate of 23.68% 
from September 2019 (this includes the administration levy of 0.8%). The timing of the implementation is to align its introduction 
with employers’ budget planning cycles. Until then, employers will pay the current rate of 16.48%. A copy of the latest valuation 
report can be found by following this link to the Teachers’ Pension Scheme website 

Scheme Changes 

The arrangements for a reformed Teachers’ Pension Scheme, in line with the recommendations made by Lord Hutton, in particular 
the introduction of a Career Average Revalued Earnings (CARE) scheme, were implemented from 1 April 2015. 

In December 2018, the Court of Appeal held that transitional protection provisions contained in the reformed judicial and firefighter 
pension schemes, introduced as part of public service pension reforms in 2015, gave rise to direct age discrimination and were 
therefore unlawful. The Supreme Court, in a decision made in June 2019, have rejected the Government’s application for permission 
to appeal the Court of Appeal’s ruling. The case will now be referred to an Employment Tribunal for a decision regarding the remedy 
which will need to be offered to those members of the two schemes who were subject of the age discrimination. 

HM Treasury are clear that the ruling has implications for the other public service schemes, including the Teachers’ Pension Scheme. 
Those implications are currently being considered and any impact on scheme costs is expected to be looked at within the next 
scheme valuation, which is currently scheduled to be based on April 2020 data and implemented in April 2023. 

27 Local Government Pension Scheme 

The LGPS is a funded defined benefit pension scheme with the assets held in separate Trustee-administered funds. The total 
contribution made for the period ended 31 August 2019 was £119K of which employer’s contributions totalled £91K and employees’ 
contributions totalled £28K. The agreed contribution rates for future years are between 14% and 23.68% for employers and between 
5.5% and 12.5 % for employees. 

Parliament has agreed, at the request of the Secretary of State for Education, to a guarantee that, in the event of Academy closure, 
outstanding Local Government Pension Scheme liabilities would be met by the Department for Education. The guarantee came into 
force on 18 July 2013. 

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities 

The current mortality assumptions include sufficient allowance for future improvements in mortality rates.  The assumed life 
expectations on retirement age 65 are: 

 At 31 August 2019 

Retiring today  

Males 21.4 

Females 24.2 

Retiring in 20 years  

 At 31 August 2019 
NYCC 

At 31 August 2019 
ERY 

 Minimum of range (%) Maximum of Range (%) 

Rate of increase in salaries 2.50% 3.35% 

Rate of increase for pensions in payment/inflation 2.10% 2.30% 

Discount rate for scheme liabilities 1.80% 1.90% 

Inflation assumption (CPI)  2.10% 2.10% 

Pension accounts revaluation rate 2.10% 2.10% 
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Males 22.8 

Females 25.9 

Sensitivity analysis 

 At 31 August 2019 

 £000 

Discount rate +0.1% (102) 

Discount rate -0.1% 105 

Mortality assumption – 1 year increase 171 

Mortality assumption – 1 year decrease (168) 

CPI rate +0.1% 64 

CPI rate -0.1% (63) 

 

 

The Trust’s share of the assets in the scheme were: 

 Fair value at 31 August 2019 
£000 

Equity instruments 2,696 
Bonds 777 
Property 378 
Cash & Other 481 

Total market value of assets 4,332 

The actual return on scheme assets was £181,000  

Amount recognised in the statement of financial activities 
 2019 

£000 
Current service cost (net of employee contributions) (182) 
Net interest cost (12) 
Past service cost (151) 

Total operating charge (345) 

Changes in the present value of defined benefit obligations 

 
2019 
£000 

At 1 June - 

Upon conversion 6,280 

Current service cost 182 

Past Service Cost 151 

Interest cost 32 

Employee contributions 28 

Actuarial (gain)/loss 726 

Actuarial loss/(gain) – demographic assumptions (130) 

Benefits paid (2) 

At 31 August 7,267 

Changes in the fair value of academy’s share of scheme assets 
 2019 

£000 
At 1 June - 
Upon conversion 4,034 
Interest income 20 
Return on plan assets (excluding net interest on the net 
defined pension liability) - 
Actuarial gain/(loss) 161 
Employer contributions 91 
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Employee contributions 28 
Benefits paid (2) 

At 31 August 4,332 

28 Related party transactions 

Owing to the nature of the Trust and the composition of the board of Trustees being drawn from local public and private sector 
organisations, transactions may take place with organisations in which the Trust have an interest. All transactions involving such 
organisations are conducted in accordance with the requirements of the AFH, including notifying the ESFA of all transactions made on 
or after 1 April 2019 and obtaining their approval where required, and with the academy trust’s financial regulations and  normal 
procurement procedures relating to connected and related party transactions.  

The academy trust occupies the footprint of the school building which is owned by its trustees, the Diocese of Middlesborough. The 
Diocese are the providers of the buildings on the same basis as when the academy was a maintained school. The academy trust 
occupies the buildings under a mere licence. This continuing permission of the trustees is pursuant to, and subject to, the trustees' 
charitable objects, and is part of the Catholic Church's contribution since 1847 to provide State funded education in partnership with 
the State. The licence delegates aspects of the management of the land and buildings to the academy trust for the time being,  but 
does not vest any rights over the land in the academy trust. The trustees have given an undertaking to the Secretary of State that 
they will not give the academy trust less than two years notice to terminate the occupation of the buildings. Having considered the 
factual matrix under which the academy trust is occupying the buildings the trustees have concluded that the value of the land and 
buildings occupied by the academy trust will not be recognised on the balance sheet of the academy. 

No related party transactions took place in the period of account. 

29 Conversion to an Academy 

During the period ended 31 August 2019, 13 schools converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations 
and assets and liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy trust from North Yorkshire local Authority for 
£nil consideration. 

The transfer has been accounted for as a combination that is in substance a gift. The asset and liabilities transferred were valued at 
their fair value and recognised in the balance sheet under the appropriate headings with a corresponding net amount recognised as a 
net gain/(loss) in the Statement of Financial Activities as Donations – transfer from local authority on conversion. 

 The following table sets out the fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities transferred and an analysis of their recognition in the 
SOFA.  

  
Unrestricted 

funds 
Restricted 

general funds 
Restricted fixed 

asset funds Total funds 

Combined £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                        -                           -                        136                     136  

Current assets     

Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA 
funds 837 0 115 952 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                        -    (2,246)                         -    (2,246) 

Net assets / liabilities                    837  (2,246)                     251  (1,158) 

 

On 1 June 2019, St Francis Xavier converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and liabilities 

were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 

 

Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 
Restricted fixed 

asset funds 
Total 
funds 

St Francis Xavier (SFX) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -                              1                   1  

Current assets     
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Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA funds 118                 -    45 163 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    (247)                          -    (247) 

Net assets / liabilities 
                  

118  (247)                         46              (83)  

On 1 June 2019, St George’s Scarborough converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and 

liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 

 

Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 
Restricted fixed 

asset funds 
Total 
funds 

St George's Scarborough (SGS) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -                             -                    -    

Current assets     

Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA funds 10                 -                             -    10 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    (77)                          -    (77) 

Net assets / liabilities                     10  (77)                          -    
               

(67) 

On 1 June 2019, St Augustine’s Scarborough converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and 
assets and liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 

 

Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
Total 
funds 

St Augustine's (SAS) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -    
                        

23  
               

23  

Current assets     
Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA 
funds 196                 -    50 246 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    (411)                          -    (411) 

Net assets / liabilities 
                  

196  (411) 
                        

73  
             

(142)  

On 1 June 2019, Our Lady and St Peters converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets 
and liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 

 

Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
Total 
funds 

Our Lady & St Peter (OLP) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -                             -                    -    

Current assets     
Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA 
funds 159                 -                             -    159 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    (296)                          -    (296) 

Net assets / liabilities 
                  

159  (296)                          -    
             

(137)  

On 1 July 2019, St Mary’s Malton converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and 
liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 
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Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
Total 
funds 

St Mary's Malton (SMM) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -    
                        

36  
               

36  

Current assets     
Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA 
funds 30                 -                             -    30 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    (216)                          -    (216) 

Net assets / liabilities 
                    

30  (216) 
                        

36  
               

(150)  

 

 

 

 

 

On 1 July 2019, St Mary’s Richmond converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and 
liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 

 

Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
Total 
funds 

St Mary's Richmond (SMR) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -                             -                    -    

Current assets     
Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA 
funds 46                 -    20 66 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    (128)                          -    (128) 

Net assets / liabilities 
                    

46  (128) 
                        

20  
               

(62)  

On 1 July 2019, St Joseph’s Pickering converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and 
liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 

 

Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
Total 
funds 

St Joseph's (SJP) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -                             -                    -    

Current assets     
Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA 
funds 51                 -                             -    51 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    (116)                          -    (116) 

Net assets / liabilities 
                    

51  (116)                          -    
               

(65)  

On 1 July 2019, St John of Beverley converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and 
liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 
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Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
Total 
funds 

St John's Beverley (SJB) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -    
                        

51  
               

51  

Current assets     
Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA 
funds 79                 -                             -    79 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    (231)                          -    (231) 

Net assets / liabilities 
                    

79  (231) 
                        

51  
             

(101)  

 

 

 

 

 

 

On 1 July 2019, St Mary & St Joseph converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and assets and 
liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 

 

Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
Total 
funds 

St Mary & St Joseph (SMJ) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -                             -                    -    

Current assets     
Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA 
funds (2)                 -                             -    (2) 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    (62)                          -    (62) 

Net assets / liabilities (2) (62)                          -    (64) 

On 1 July 2019, St Mary’s Market Weighton converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and 
assets and liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 

 

Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
Total 
funds 

St Mary's Market Weighton (SMW) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -                             -                    -    

Current assets     
Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA 
funds 17                 -                             -    17 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    (195)                          -    (195) 

Net assets / liabilities 
                    

17  (195)                          -    
               

(178)  

On 1 August 2019, St Peter’s Scarborough converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and 
assets and liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 
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Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
Total 
funds 

St Peter's Scarborough (SPS) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -    
                        

25  
               

25  

Current assets     
Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA 
funds 77                 -                             -    

               
77  

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    (217)                          -    
-                

(217)  

Net assets / liabilities 
                    

77  (217) 
                        

25  
             

(115)  

 

 

 

 

 

On 1 August 2019, Sacred Heart Northallerton converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and 
assets and liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 

 

Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
Total 
funds 

Sacred Heart (SHN) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -                             -                    -    

Current assets     
Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA 
funds 37                 -                             -    37 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    0                          -    (0) 

Net assets / liabilities 37 0                          -    37 

On 1 August 2019, St Benedict’s Ampleforth converted to academy status under the Academies Act 2010 and all the operations and 
assets and liabilities were transferred to St Margaret Clitherow Catholic Academy Trust from North Yorkshire Local Authority. 

 

Unrestricted 
funds 

Restricted 
general 

funds 

Restricted 
fixed asset 

funds 
Total 
funds 

St Benedicts (SBN) £'000 £'000 £'000 £'000 

Tangible fixed assets     

Other tangible fixed assets                      -                    -                             -                    -    

Current assets     
Cash/loan - representing budget surplus/(deficit) on LA 
funds 20                 -                             -    20 

Non-current liabilities     

LGPS pension surplus/(deficit)                      -    (51)                          -    (51) 

Net assets / liabilities 
                    

20  (51)                          -    
               

(31)  

 


